
Request for Information (RFI): 
Partnership for Deployment of High-Speed Broadband in Yamhill County, Oregon 

Questions and Answers 

1. Section V, subsection 4 refers to the “Yamhill County network, a fiber optic…network…” Please provide a map 
showing the current fiber available to Yamhill County and/or any other details useful in understanding the scope 
of the County’s fiber optic network. 

Current Yamhill County access to broadband networks and providers can be found at GEOISP 
(https://geoisp.com/us/or/) and through the Oregon Broadband Office found here: 
https://www.oregon4biz.com/Broadband-Office/Interactive-Map/. 

2. What is expected for “substantially improve service in two years”? 

The county is seeking to provide broadband speeds of at least 25 megabits per second (Mbps) downstream and 3 
Mbps upstream to all communities addressed in the proposed service area. Yamhill County will give priority to 
partners who can offer broadband services to rural areas that demonstrate the greatest need and will look to 
potential providers to establish reasonable parameters for substantially improving broadband services in two years. 

3. Are you excluding areas such as cities that already have these services? What are the priority areas 
geographically? 

Respondents should be prepared to provide broadband service in rural, economically challenged communities where 
broadband service is currently less than 10 Mbps downstream and 1 Mbps upstream. All areas within the Yamhill 
County service area map must be lacking broadband service to be eligible. 

4. Any sense of budget?  This would be a 9-figure build to meet 1GB for all residents. 

Yamhill County will look to respondents to establish reasonable parameters for budget recommendations necessary 
for substantially improving broadband services in two years. 

5. Why emphasis on gigabit when average user consumes less than 10 Mbps? 

Yamhill County has chosen to follow the standards and recommendations established by the United States 
Department of Agriculture and its subsequent rural broadband programs. Rural areas that lack any existing 
broadband speed of at least 10 Mbps downstream and 1 Mbps upstream are eligible. 

6. Why do you believe the need for ultra-high-speed broadband access is growing? What is ultra-high speed? 

Yamhill County intends to invest in the long-term broadband infrastructure of the county. Recommendations for 
higher Mbps internet speed will provide a greater benefit and overall experience for county business and residential 
customers. Respondents must provide broadband speeds of at least 25 megabits per second (Mbps) downstream and 
3 Mbps upstream to all communities addressed in the proposed service area. 

7. How involved does the County want to be in managing the end product long-term? 

In the event Yamhill County issues, an RFP and subsequently enters into a contract agreement with a provider for 
rural broadband services, that agreement will clearly define the outcomes, deliverables, and reporting requirements. 

  

https://geoisp.com/us/or/


8. Are the responses confidential? 

All responses to Yamhill County’s RFI are considered public record and respondents should assume they will be shared 
with the public. 

9. For the section describing wireless as a last-mile solution, would Air Fiber be considered an alternative middle-
mile solution? 

Yamhill County is open to all well-reasoned and effective broadband solutions. 

10. Could this be ready to go as early as next month to make use of Reconnect funding that has a NOFO release as 
early as next month? 

Yamhill County will determine next steps for this project following full review of RFI responses received by September 
17, 2021.  

11. What process is the county utilizing to confirm areas where winners are not providing the desired 1 Gig service? 

Mechanisms for project management and contractor reporting requirements will be determined at a later date. 

12. Many cities and counties taking a similar approach to improve internet access provide the scoring methodology 
to be utilized in determining the winning bidder(s).  Can the county provide that now? 

The current RFI is not intended to result in the award of a contract with Yamhill County. The County may choose to 
issue an RFP or other solicitation at a later time. 
 
13. Can the county provide direction prior to RFI submittal regarding minimum acceptable upload speeds?   

Respondents must provide broadband speeds of at least 25 megabits per second (Mbps) downstream and 3 Mbps 
upstream to all communities addressed in the proposed service area. 

14. Does the county presently have its owned licensed wireless spectrum?  If not, will the county consider owning 
its own licensed spectrum? 

Yamhill County does not have its own licensed wireless spectrum and would not consider owning one at this time. 

15. Is the county participating in other state of Oregon efforts to enhance middle mile availability and access or 
should bidders assume that middle mile will need to be addressed in bidder response? 

Respondents to this RFI should not assume other funding will be utilized to address gaps in services. 

16.  If the county is planning on allowing access to its current fiber network as indicated in RFI, can it provide 
detailed information now to potential bidders enabling consideration as part of a proposed solution?  Details 
would include available strands, backhaul currently utilized by the county and backhaul capacity currently 
available. 

Yamhill County does not have an external proprietary fiber network beyond County campus and office locations. 

  



17. The county desires strand availability to its businesses and power users as part of a proposed solution.  Fiber 
material costs and installation vary based on strand count.  How will county evaluate different designs and 
different prices? 

Yamhill County expects respondents to provide options and recommendations for achieving stated project goals in 
the most effective and economical way possible. 

18. Will the county give preference to responders with 25 or more employees residing or working in the county, 
performing the work proposed? 

The current RFI is not intended to result in the award of a contract with Yamhill County. The County may choose to 
issue an RFP or other solicitation at a later time that may or may not give preference to respondents with 25 or more 
employees residing or working in Yamhill County, in accordance with applicable law. 

19. Are there any public/partnership models the county is unable to enter in based on legal or other constraints? 

The county is not aware of any such constraints. 

20. Will the county identify those parties involved in providing counsel and input to creation of the RFI? 

There have been no outside parties involved with the creation of Yamhill County’s RFI. 

21. Responses to the RFI will contain proprietary information.   What assurances can the county provide that 
information marked proprietary will be redacted should a FOIA request occur? 

All responses to Yamhill County’s RFI are considered public record and respondents should assume they will be shared 
with the public. In the event that a respondent’s response contains information that the respondent considers 
confidential or proprietary, that information should  be clearly marked CONFIDENTIAL, and it would be the 
respondent’s responsibility to argue for  exclusion from disclosure under applicable Oregon public records law in 
response to a public records request.  

 


